## Meeting Minutes

# **Polaris PTO**

Monday, August 7, 2017 6:00 pm Polaris Library

#### **Attendees**

Colin Lamb, Chair Kara Chitwood, Vice Chair Jessica Sullivan, Treasurer Melanie Chenard, Secretary Meg Freedman, Communications Chair Nicole Getzleman, Fundraising Chair Anne Sterrett, Principal Jami Davis, Jogathon Committee

### Agenda

- 1. Call to Order: Welcome and Introductions
- 2. Minutes: May 2017 meeting minutes approved
- 3. Board Reports:
  - a. Chair's Report: none
  - b. Vice Chair's Report:
    - Reviewed distribution of roles between board members. Some roles may flex year to year based on interest. Board members to hold a separate meeting for further discussion.
  - c. Treasurer's Report:
    - Jessica is working with Megan Webber to transition treasurer records & duties.
  - d. Secretary's Report:
    - Update to bylaws was discussed but not acted on last year would like to review/update this year.
- 4. Principal's Report:
  - a. Article: *Is It a Cheetah?* By Stephanie S. Tolan (see attached handout)
    - Focus on giving students the opportunity to reach their full potential.
    - Though the focus is not on test scores, there does have to be some way to measure.
  - b. Vision for Polaris goals for students, parents, staff (see attached handout)
    - Individualized work with kids
    - More parent education/support

- Regular communication from teachers to parents
- c. PTO role in supporting the vision
  - Funding for paras and electives
  - Community-building events
  - Volunteers
    - Anne would like help organizing more events for parents one per semester or quarter
- d. General discussion of PTO spending is it in the right place?
  - Paras are huge benefit. Have worked to maximize their schedules 8 paras this year. PTO funding \$90K this year school spending an additional \$54K.
  - Technology school is very close to 1:1 on computers. Ongoing effort to refresh older units. (school budget)
  - Electives \$15K PTO budget again this year
  - STEAM \$10K PTO budget available to teachers for special projects. Could be spearheaded by Katie Ray. Kristin Heeres also willing to help.
- e. Eclipse
  - School has glasses, volunteers to provide 3:1 student:adult ratio for supervised viewing. In-class activities around the eclipse.

#### 5. Committee Reports

- a. Volunteers:
  - Back to School Meet & Greet PTO table with info. No snacks.
  - Curriculum Night PTO table?
- b. Annual Fund:
  - Fliers to distribute at meet & greet, curriculum night, distribute rest throughout year.
  - Grade level parent social dates all set. Same night for 1st/5th and for 3rd/4th. May be hard for Anne to attend overlapping events prioritize 1st over 5th, 3rd/4th both in Park Hill.
  - Plan to focus on corporate matches in spring.
- c. Jogathon
  - Date: October 6th, backup date October 13th
  - Electives will still be held on jogathon day
  - Park permit is in place
- d. Auction
  - Decision on venue at next meeting
- e. Communications
  - New website will be up soon. Need to clarify office content vs. PTO content.
  - ePost first issue in August

- Facebook Anne has a site in progress. Intent is to post articles on GT education/parenting, school events, PTO functions. Access to be controlled by Anne and Meg.
- 6. Teacher Report: no teacher present
- 7. Unfinished Business: none
- 8. New Business:
  - a. PTO considering soliciting Buy-A-Shares throughout the year focus more on community-building aspect
- 9. Adjournment next meeting August 28, 2017.

#### Is It a Cheetah?

By Stephanie S. Tolan

#### © 1996 Stephanie S. Tolan

It's a tough time to raise, teach or **be** a highly gifted child. As the term "gifted" and the unusual intellectual capacity to which that term refers become more and more politically incorrect, the educational establishment changes terminology and focus.

Giftedness, a global, integrative mental capacity, may be dismissed, replaced by fragmented "talents" which seem less threatening and theoretically easier for schools to deal with. Instead of an internal developmental reality that affects every aspect of a child's life, "intellectual talent" is more and more perceived as synonymous with (and limited to) academic achievement.



The child who does well in school, gets good grades, wins awards, and "performs" beyond the norms for his or her age, is considered talented. The child who does not, no matter what his innate intellectual capacities or developmental level, is less and less likely to be identified, less and less likely to be served.

A cheetah metaphor can help us see the problem with achievement-oriented thinking. The cheetah is the fastest animal on earth. When we think of cheetahs we are likely to think first of their speed. It's flashy. It is impressive. It's unique. And it makes identification incredibly easy. Since cheetahs are the only animals that can run 70 mph, if you clock an animal running 70 mph, IT'S A CHEETAH!

But cheetahs are not always running. In fact, they are able to maintain top speed only for a limited time, after which they need a considerable period of rest.

It's not difficult to identify a cheetah when it isn't running, provided we know its other characteristics. It is gold with black spots, like a leopard, but it also has unique black "tear marks" beneath its eyes. Its head is small, its body lean, its legs unusually long -- all bodily characteristics critical to a runner. And the

cheetah is the only member of the cat family that has non-retractable claws. Other cats retract their claws to keep them sharp, like carving knives kept in a sheath --the cheetah's claws are designed not for cutting but for traction. This is an animal biologically designed to run.

Its chief food is the antelope, itself a prodigious runner. The antelope is not large or heavy, so the cheetah does not need strength and bulk to overpower it. Only speed. On the open plains of its natural habitat the cheetah is capable of catching an antelope simply by running it down.

While body design in nature is utilitarian, it also creates a powerful internal drive. The cheetah needs to run!

Despite design and need however, certain conditions are necessary if it is to attain its famous 70 mph top speed. It must be fully grown. It must be healthy, fit and rested. It must have plenty of room to run. Besides that, it is best motivated to run all out when it is hungry and there are antelope to chase.

If a cheetah is confined to a 10 X 12 foot cage, though it may pace or fling itself against the bars in restless frustration, it won't run 70 mph.

#### IS IT STILL A CHEETAH?

If a cheetah has only 20 mph rabbits to chase for food, it won't run 70 mph while hunting. If it did, it would flash past its prey and go hungry! Though it might well run on its own for exercise, recreation, fulfillment of its internal drive, when given only rabbits to eat the hunting cheetah will run only fast enough to catch a rabbit.

#### IS IT STILL A CHEETAH?

If a cheetah is fed Zoo Chow it may not run at all.

#### IS IT STILL A CHEETAH?

If a cheetah is sick or if its legs have been broken, it won't even walk.

#### IS IT STILL A CHEETAH?

And finally, if the cheetah is only six weeks old, it can't yet run 70 mph.

IS IT, THEN, ONLY A \*POTENTIAL\* CHEETAH?



A school system that defines giftedness (or talent) as behavior, achievement and performance is as compromised in its ability to recognize its highly gifted students and to give them what they need as a zoo would be to recognize and provide for its cheetahs if it looked only for speed. When a cheetah does run 70 mph it isn't a particularly "achieving" cheetah. Though it is doing what no other cat can do, it is behaving

normally for a cheetah.

To lions, tigers, leopards -- to any of the other big cats -- the cheetah's biological attributes would seem to be deformities. Far from the "best cat," the cheetah would seem to be barely a cat at all. It is not heavy enough to bring down a wildebeest; its non-retractable claws cannot be kept sharp enough to tear the wildebeest's thick hide. Given the cheetah's tendency to activity, cats who spend most of their time sleeping in the sun might well label the cheetah hyperactive.

Like cheetahs, highly gifted children can be easy to identify. If a child teaches herself Greek at age five, reads at the eighth grade level at age six or does algebra in second grade we can safely assume that child is a highly gifted child. Though the world may see these activities as "achievements," she is not an "achieving" child so much as a child who is operating normally according to her own biological design, her innate mental capacity. Such a child has clearly been given room to "run" and something to run for. She is healthy and fit and has not had her capacities crippled. It doesn't take great knowledge about the characteristics of highly gifted children to recognize this child.

However, schools are to extraordinarily intelligent children what zoos are to cheetahs. Many schools provide a  $10 \times 12$  foot cage, giving the unusual mind no room to get up to speed. Many highly gifted children sit in the classroom the way big cats sit in their cages, dull-eyed and silent. Some, unable to resist the urge from inside even though they can't exercise it, pace the bars, snarl and lash out at their keepers, or throw themselves against the bars until they do themselves damage.

Even open and enlightened schools are likely to create an environment that, like the cheetah enclosures in enlightened zoos, allow some moderate running, but no room for the growing cheetah to develop the necessary

muscles and stamina to become a 70 mph runner. Children in cages or enclosures, no matter how bright, are unlikely to appear highly gifted; kept from exercising their minds for too long, these children may never be able to reach the level of mental functioning they were designed for.

A zoo, however much room it provides for its cheetahs, does not feed them antelope, challenging them either to run full out or go hungry. Schools similarly provide too little challenge for the development of extraordinary minds. Even a gifted program may provide only the intellectual equivalent of 20 mph rabbits (while sometimes labeling children suspected of extreme intelligence "underachievers" for NOT putting on top speed to catch those rabbits!) Without special programming, schools provide the academic equivalent of Zoo Chow, food that requires no effort whatsoever. Some children refuse to take in such uninteresting, dead nourishment at all.

To develop not just the physical ability but also the strategy to catch antelope in the wild, a cheetah must have antelopes to chase, room to chase them and a cheetah role model to show them how to do it. Without instruction and practice they are unlikely to be able to learn essential survival skills.

A recent nature documentary about cheetahs in lion country showed a curious fact of life in the wild. Lions kill cheetah cubs. They don't eat them, they just kill them. In fact, they appear to work rather hard to find them in order to kill them (though cheetahs can't possibly threaten the continued survival of lions). Is this maliciousness? Recreation? No one knows. We only know that lions do it. Cheetah mothers must hide their dens and go to great efforts to protect their cubs, coming and going from the den under deep cover or only in the dead of night or when lions are far away. Highly gifted children and their families often feel like cheetahs in lion country.

In some schools brilliant children are asked to do what they were never designed to do (like cheetahs asked to tear open a wildebeest hide with their claws -- after all, the lions can do it!) while the attributes that are a natural aspect of unusual mental capacity -- intensity, passion, high energy, independence, moral reasoning, curiosity, humor, unusual interests and insistence on truth and accuracy -- are considered problems that need fixing.

Brilliant children may feel surrounded by lions who make fun of or shun them for their differences, who may even break their legs or drug them to keep them moving more slowly, in time with the lions' pace. Is it any wonder they would try to escape; would put on a lion suit to keep from being noticed; would fight back?

This metaphor, like any metaphor, eventually breaks down. Highly gifted children don't have body markings and non-retractable claws by which to be identified when not performing. Furthermore, the cheetah's ability to run 70 mph is a single trait readily measured. Highly gifted children are very different from each other so there is no single ability to look for even when they are performing; besides that, a child's greatest gifts could be outside the academic world's definition of achievement and so go unrecognized altogether. While this truth can save some children from being wantonly killed by marauding lions, it also keeps them from being recognized for what they are -- children with deep and powerful innate differences as all-encompassing as the differences between cheetahs and other big cats.

That they may not be instantly recognizable does not mean that there is no means of identifying them. It means that more time and effort are required to do it. Educators can learn the attributes of unusual intelligence and observe closely enough to see those attributes in individual children. They can recognize not only that highly gifted children can do many things other children cannot, but that there are tasks other children can do that the highly gifted cannot.

Every organism has an internal drive to fulfill its biological design. The same is true for unusually bright children. From time to time the bars need be removed, the enclosures broadened. Zoo Chow, easy and cheap as it is, must give way, at least some of the time, to lively, challenging mental prey.

More than this, schools need to believe that it is important to make the effort, that these children not only have the needs of all other children to be protected and properly cared for, but that they have as much RIGHT as others to have their needs met.

Biodiversity is a fundamental principle of life on our planet. It allows life to adapt to change. In our culture highly gifted children, like cheetahs, are endangered. Like cheetahs, they are here for a reason; they fill a particular niche in the design of life. Zoos, whatever their limitations, may be critical to the continued survival of cheetahs; many are doing their best to offer their captives what they will need eventually to survive in the wild. Schools can do the same for their highly gifted children.

Unless we make a commitment to saving these children, we will continue to lose them and whatever unique benefit their existence might provide for the human species of which they are an essential part.

Note: please disseminate this article widely if you find it useful. Proper attribution would be appreciated, however -- **Stephanie S. Tolan** 

Polaris is an arts integrated school specifically designed to meet the unique needs of gifted learners in order to prepare them for a successful future.

#### Students:

- A place where they are able to flex their mental muscles—To jump high and land safely,
  - Challenged to keep learning beyond grade level in core content, and accepted if this is not their area.
    - Classroom differentiation
    - Paraprofessionals
    - Inquiry based lessons
    - Curriculum/Arts integration
  - Opportunity to pursue areas of interest
    - Independent projects
    - Spelling Bee
    - Honors Reading
    - Electives
    - After school Enrichments
    - Math Olympiad
    - Destination Imagination
    - Young writers
    - Collaboration with peers
    - Arts integration
    - Technology
    - Shakespeare
  - Environment that is safe
    - To be smart
    - To be silly
    - To be funny (as long as it doesn't hurt others)
    - To not have all the answers
    - To explore
    - To problem solve
    - To collaborate
    - To take risks
    - To make mistakes
    - To undertake challenging work
    - To be treated with dignity and respect
    - Love and Logic
  - Attention to the development of the whole child
    - Random Acts of Kindness
    - Love and Logic
    - Recess
    - Field Trips
    - Science and Social Studies
    - Arts

- Physical Education
- Morning meetings to explore social emotional topics
- Plentiful opportunity to engage with peers in adult directed and nondirected activity
- Confidence and leadership development
- Service to others
- Supports to help develop lagging areas
  - Caring adults trained to meet social/emotional needs of GT
  - Multiple Tiers of Support Systems (new)
- GREAT TEACHERS who are trained to meet the needs of GT students and who
  dedicate themselves to the well-being of each student academically, physically,
  and socially

#### Parents:

- A safe place to have a gifted child
  - No one will think you are bragging
  - Understanding of the challenges
  - Parent education and support
  - o Partnership between home and school is valued
  - o Communication between home and school is meaningful and two way
    - Website
    - EPost
    - Regular (at least once a month) communication from teachers
    - Monthly communication from principal
    - Thursday Folders
  - o Community Events:
    - Meet and Greet
    - Back to School Night
    - Grade Level Parties
    - Romancing the Vine
    - Science Fair
    - Talent Night
    - Spring Showcase
    - Holiday Parties
  - Opportunities to be involved
    - PTO: Monthly
    - CSC: Monthly
    - Classroom Volunteering
    - Special Event Volunteering
    - Electives Volunteering

#### Staff:

- Encouragement to think outside the box, to try new methods
- Freedom to make choices in teaching methods and materials
- Atmosphere of dignity, respect, and collaboration
- Plentiful materials, supplies

- Continued learning
- Professional learning community teams
- Support and coaching
- Opportunity and expectation to be leaders and learners
- Supportive parent community who partner appropriately with teachers

We will continue to focus on curriculum compacting and acceleration in mathematics and inquiry based Genre Studies in literacy.

We will be looking at disaggregated data to ensure that sub-groups are provided with what they need to be as successful at Polaris as our larger populations.

We will track individual student progress to ensure that all students are learning.

We will focus on four essential questions to guide our work:

- 1. What is it we want students to know and be able to do?
- 2. What will we do if they already know it or learn it very quickly?
- 3. What will we do if they have difficulty?
- 4. How will we know?